AGENDA
JOINT TOWN COUNCIL AND RICHLANDS PLANNING
COMISSION MEETING

At Richlands Town Hall
April 12,2022
5:30 P.M.
I.  Call the Meeting to Order
II. Invocation

III.  Pledge of Allegiance

IV.  Open Public Hearing #1 (Re-zoning)
a. 1809 Third Street

Close Public Hearing #1

V.  Open Public Hearing #2 (Re-zoning)
a. 105 Augusta Avenue

Close Public Hearing #2
VI.  Planning Commission Recess for Decision

VII.  Open Public Hearing #3 (Proposed 2022-2023 Budget and Rates)
0-2022-04-01 (Real Estate and Personal Property Tax)

b. 0-2022-04-02 (Cigarette Tax)

c. 0-2022-04-03 (Water, Sewer, Garbage, and Electric Rates)
d. 0-2022-04-05 (2022-2023 Budget)

®

Close Public Hearing #3

VIII.  Adjourn






I1.

I11.

IV.

VI

VII.

VIIL

IX.

XI.

XII.

AGENDA
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING
At Richlands Town Hall
April 12, 2022
6:00 P.M.

Call the Meeting to Order
Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance

Additions/Deletions to Agenda (Includes the removal/transfer of Consent Agenda items as needed.)
a. Approval of Agenda

Recognition of the Richlands High School Scholastic Bowl Team

Consent Agenda

a. Authorization to Pay Bills (March)

b. Minutes- Regular Council Meeting (March 8, 2022) and Budget Retreat
(March 19, 2022)

c. Authorize Line of Credit Drawdown Number #19 from National Bank for
Wastewater Treatment Plant Rehabilitation Project ($1,010.92) and Water
Treatment Plant Upgrades and Improvements ($0) cost for October billing for
a total of ($1,010.92), and for Wastewater Treatment Plant Rehabilitation
Project ($10,923.31) and Water Treatment Plant Upgrades and Improvements
($840) cost for February billing for a total of $11,934.23 and Wastewater
Treatment Plant Rehabilitation Project ($0) and Water Treatment Plant
Upgrades and Improvements ($1,922.84) cost for March billing for a total of
($922.84), for a total drawdown of $14,697.07.

Scheduled Public Comments (Five Minute Maximum)
a.) Laura Mollo- Budget

Unscheduled Public Comments (Three Minute Maximum)

911 Anniversary Presentation (Major Heatley, Tazewell County Sheriff’s Dept.)
Introduction of New Finance Officer

VDEM Presentation (Tim Estes, VDEM)

Davenport & Company (Kyle Laux)



XIII.

XIV.

XV.

XVI.

XVIL

XVIIIL.

XIX.

XX.

XXI.

DEQ Update on Iron Street Property (Meade Anderson, VA DEQ, via Zoom)
Invoice Cloud Presentation and Discussion (Adam Ek, via Zoom)

Executive/Closed Session Pursuant to VA Code Section
a. 2.2-3711(A) (8) — Consultation with legal Counsel (Trademark matter)

Return to Open Session, Certification, Report on Action

Town Manager Report
a. Access Channel Update

b. Continued Meeting on 4/19
c. IDA Resignation
d. Utility Billing Update
e. Greenway Stage Update
f. Library Funding Update
g. Economic Development
h. Miscellaneous
Agenda Items

a. Discussion on Vacant Council Seat
b. IDA Update and Appointment Discussion
c. Discussion of Procedural Changes to Council Meetings
e R-2022-04-01 Public Comment Policy and Procedures
e Closed Session Early in Meetings (Update)
e Council Report Time-limits (Update)
d. Re-Zoning Requests
1. 1809 Third Street
2. 105 Augusta Avenue
e. 2022-2023 Budget Year Ordinances
1. 0-2022-04-01 (Real Estate Tax and Personal Property Tax)
2. 0-2022-04-02 (Cigarette Tax)
3. 0-2022-04-03 (Garbage Rates)
4. 0-2022-04-04 (2022-2023 Budget)
5. 0-2022-04-05 (Water, Sewer, Electric Rates)
f.  Proposed 2022-2023 Budget Discussion

Council Member Reports (Non-voting Items)
b.) Darrell Addison
c.) Doug Ratliff
d.) Mike Street
e.) Jeff Hurst

Mayor’s Comments
Recess Meeting

A Continued Meeting will be held on April 19,2022, at 6pm.
Next regular meeting date is May 10, 2022, at 6:00 pm



The Richiands Town Council held a “Regular Council Meeting” on March 8, 2022, in the Richlands Council
Chambers at 6:00 pm with the following present:

Mayor: Rod D. Cury

Town Manager: John O’Daniel

Town Clerk: Connie Allen

Council Members: Mary Ann Strong, Doug Ratliff,

Richard Brown, Darrell Addison

Council Members Absent: Mike Street, Jeff Hurst

Town Attorney: Michael Thomas
Mayor Cury opened the meeting.
Mayor Cury gave the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.
Mayor Cury — Is there any Additions/Deletions to the Agenda?
John — Add Contract Negotiations — 2.2-3711(A)
Mary Ann — | make a motion to approve the agenda as amended, Darrell seconded the motion.
Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Darrell - Yes, Richard- Yes, Mary Ann - Yes

Motion carries —4/0

Mayor Cury - Is there anyone here that would like to be added to “Unscheduled Public Comments”.
Please add Shea Cook, Steve Conley, Kevin Hamilton, and John W. Brown.

Mayor Cury - | need a motion to add these people to “Unscheduled Public Comments”,
Darrell - | make the motion, Mary Ann seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion

say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Darrell - Yes, Richard- Yes, Mary Ann — Yes
Motion carries — 4/0

Mayor Cury — Recognition of the Richlands Wrestling Youth and Varsity Teams - Read the information
sent in by Coach Daughtery and Coach Brown. Recognized the Youth Middle School, Varsity Teams and

Coaches. Presented certificate to the Teams.

Mayor Cury - “Unscheduled Public Comments — Kevin Hamilton will not be able to be here tonight.



Mayor Cury - Approval of Minutes — Regular Meeting February 8 and Special Called Meeting February
21.

Richard - | make a motion to approve both sets of minutes, Darrell seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Darrell - Yes, Richard- Yes, Mary Ann - Yes
Motion carries — 4/0

Mayor Cury - Consent Agenda — Authorization to Pay Bills (February) and Authorize Line of Credit
Drawdown #18. - Is there a motion to adopt the “Consent Agenda” as presented?

Darrell- | make a motion we approve the “Consent Agenda”, Mary Ann seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Darrell - Yes, Richard- Yes, and Mary Ann —
Yes Motion carries —4/0

Mayor Cury ~ “Scheduled Public Comments” — Laura Mollo

Laura Mollo ~ 262 Linwood Drive

e Addressed the speech given by Richard Brown at January meeting. None of you should attack
citizens for exercising their rights to speak at the meetings. If you are only going to listen to
people that agree with you, you have bigger problems than | ever imagined. Not only attacking
a citizen is wrong but what you said was not true.

e | wanton the record any FIOA request that is requested by citizen is paid by the citizen and not
the Town. FIOA is a legally protected right in America where we value freedom and
transparency. Any citizen should be welcomed and encouraged not attacked.

e Representative democracy elected officials or servants of the people not the other way around.

e Onthe agenda you are considering the insurance renewal, | am asking that you remove Council
insurance as an option and not to burden our budget with things that benefit you personally.
Think of the citizens and do not allow yourself health insurance paid by the taxpayer’s money.

e Lifeguard Program at the Rec Park- | know it is difficult to find and keep enough lifeguards, the
classes are expensive and the initial cost is $250; it is required to become a lifeguard. Not
everyone in Richlands can afford the class and excludes many qualified individuals. Bluefield has
a program in place; they offer the classes for free to the citizens of the community in exchange
for a one-year employment contract. This gives kids that may not be able to afford the fee a
great way to take the class and have a summer job. It benefits the Town to make sure we have
enough life guards during the time the pool is open. | am asking that you adopt a similar plan in
Richlands giving every child an equal opportunity for a great summer job.



Mayor Cury — “Scheduled Public Comments” — Donnie Yates

Donnie Yates - 674 Fairground Road, Tazewell, VA

This is my third Town on the County Tour; two out of the three Towns have been recognizing
our young people.

Special Year for the County Fair, 150" Anniversary

No Fair in 2020 due to Covid and limited Fair in 2021.

This year will have a mobile museum about the State of Virginia.

Asking for Council to consider making a donation to the County Fair. Fairs are not cheap and
anything you could donate would be appreciated.

We are going to form a committee and | hope it will make it a true Tazewel! County Fair. We are
asking each Town to select someone to serve on the committee. Someone who is active in your
community. We want to meet on a monthly basis. We are asking each Town’s representative to
keep in touch with you and get your ideas on what you would like to see at the Fair.

Handed out contact information about the Fair.

Mayor Cury — “Unscheduled Public Comments” — Shea Cook

Shea Cook - 215 Washington Square, Richlands — VA

Handed out Letter written to Mayor Cury

Request a comparison study by Weldon-Cooper, a free and competent analysis by an arm of the
University of Virginia.

If a determination is made to keep the power system, then adopt the exact price structure as
used by AEP.

Provide more transparency in every aspect of the power system by reconstituting the electrical
committee, including at least three (3) customer members not employed by the Town.

Do not take the attitude that customers are too dumb or unsophisticated to understand the
issues.

Do not raise any rates, forecasted or not, during 2022.

Eliminate the PCA for 2022.

Councilmembers that are not Town customers should abstain from voting on any rate
adjustments.

Mayor Cury — “Unscheduled Public Comments” Steve Conley

Steve Conley — Cedar Bluff, VA

Discussed his electric bill in the Town of Richlands.

Has a shop on 404 Allegheny Street called Seasonal Treasures. We have been shut down since
December, nothing on except to small heaters to keep the pipes from freezing, electric bill
$397.92 and we just opened back up today.

Electric for my house in Cedar Bluff $218.00 AEP.



e Wants someone to explain why.

Mayor Cury - Here is my suggestion, | wish | could help immediately but | don’t know what to say, have
you talked to the people at the Town?

Steve Conley - | have not talked to nobody.

Mayor Cury - | would suggest after the meeting you talk with the Town Manager or come to the Town
Hall tomorrow and maybe some the staff here, may not resolve but do their best explain what your bill
is. I know it is not the only one and | am very aware of it but | don’t think anyone here can right now.

Doug - | will give you some history on it. About ten (10) years ago under Tim Taylor, when we came in
about fifteen (15) years ago the Town was using the electric fund for a crutch and taking a lot of money
out of it, off of the top like | said a few minutes ago. When we came into Council fifteen (15) years ago
we did away with that, if you check back in years Richlands was the cheapest electric system in Virginia.
About five (5) years into my term Tim Taylor came to me and said we need to take $200,000 for taxes, |
said you shouldn’t do that because you are going to run into problems in years to come. Against my
warning, | was on the committee and so was Mary Ann. Tim Taylor went against and vote of Council
with my warning, taking $200,000 off the top. Two (2) years went by and he came back and said we
need more, against my warning the Council voted to take more and more, it’s like drugs. At this point
the reason your electric bill is so high they are taking close to a million dollars, you can check the budget
to see where it goes, that is what makes your bill twice of what it should be because of the greed of the
Town and using for other things.

Steve Conley - My bill is twice as high as my house.
Doug - If you were with AEP you would probably pay around $70.

Mary Ann - First of all, I love your shop. How does this compare with your bill last year when you shut
down?

Steve Conley - It is not as bad but they were high. We go ahead and pay don’t want to be cut off.
Darrell - Your house was $218.

Steve Conley — Yes, my shop was $397.92.

Doug - Someone ask how you could fix it, can | tell how you can fix it? You can fix it by doing a budget
that you don’t use the electric fund because don’t use as a crutch and spending on wasteful spending

that we should not spend. If | had ten (10) minutes with the budget | could cut off a million dollars and
not have to use our electric fund and have the cheapest rates in Virginia. That is how you fix it.



Mayor Cury - We are not here to argue against what you are saying, | do suggest if you can find a few
minutes to come to the Town Hall and let them go over it with you.

Mayor Cury — “Unscheduled Public Comments” — John W. Brown

Richard - | think he was with the wrestlers.

Mayor Cury — Agenda ltems — IDA Update — Blake Ray

Blake Ray —

Send Ashley Harris a message and congratulate her on all the hard work she has done on Pop-
Up Richlands. She has gone way beyond on working with the project.

Everything is ready to start on March 24.

We have nine (9) participants that have signed up.

SBDC has done a great job in putting a curriculum together as well as a local attorney and CPA
volunteering their time.

The participants are below the age of 30, which is huge.

Regarding Pop-Up Richlands in our IDA February meeting we voted to request Council to go
ahead and allocate the first $15,000 for the use of the seed grants for the participants.

The Council allocated $25,000 to the IDA fund, in the IDA documents anything over $15,000 the
Council has to approve. If you could please make a vote to allocate that $15,000 so we don’t
have any hang-ups once the participants go thru the course and the judges have made those
decisions.

We had a meeting last week that was not advertised properly a lot of the discussion topics were
around creating incentives for industries that are really too small or mid-size range. We are
going to address in our March 28™ meeting at 6:00pm. | will give you some updates at the April
meeting.

| met with two (2) members of the Tazewell County IDA, Shanna Plaster- Northwestern District
Supervisor. We discussed in our January meeting, to move a lot of the items we have been
discussing for a long time over the finish line. Our goal is to work on allowing ATVs and side by
sides in downtown; it is not going to come by Fannie’s it is going to come by the Jewell Ridge
West Fork exit. Access the Town from that exit. Jerry Gilbert was also in the meeting. This is
something we are going to request that you look at.

From a business incentive standpoint, | want to give complete credit to former Mayor Jan White
and the Council that work there, they started working on business incentives that is 80% done.
The IDA’s focus is to look at the incentives and make sure they still meet the needs of the
community and address any incentives that can be added. It is not going to happen overnight
we want to take our time. As we work thru the incentives we will bring to the Council for
approval.

My request tonight is the approval of the $15,000 for Pop-Up Richlands.



Mayor Cury - The $15,000 and the work you are doing with Spearhead to speed up and get this going
with our trails. | remember John yesterday, | got lost in the shuffle, and can you explain to me what is
going on.

John - It is essentially at the previous meeting when we changed the date we didn’t realize it when we

did our publication, the items on the list will be moved to next month’s agenda for approval if they are
approved by Planning Commission. The can be brought back to Council as request, which is the side by
side that we discussed and the business incentives.

Mayor Cury - The $15,000 | was going to ask the Attorney to weigh in on that so the Council can do it
properly.

John - The only thing the IDA is requesting tonight is the $15,000 approval because the way they are set
up anything over $1500 has to have Council approval. We have legal to look at that and see how we can
address that hurdle and when we do award these grants we can move quicker.

Blake Ray - There has been some discussions and questions about the allocations of the funds for the
$25,000 and the $7000 that came from the County. Pop-Up Richlands is doing two (2) sessions this year.
The first session starts on March 24 and then a Fall Session. The funds came from the ARPA funds and
$7000 from the County will be used in year one. Approximately 98% of the funding will go directly back
to the taxpayers in form of entrepreneur grant. What happened last week when you approved the grant
application for the Thompson Foundation, we are looking for funds for year two (2) and three (3) of Pop-
up Richlands and looking for private sources of money. | just want to make sure it is on the record that
those funds that were allocated are going directly to the program. |think there was around $2000 for
marketing, but don’t think we spent all that because the marketing was done for free. The participant
guides for the people who are taking the classes, there is paper cost, money we wanted to make sure
that was covered and not forgotten about. | just wanted everyone to know the money is going straight
to participants.

Doug - You are saying it is ARPA funds, right?
Blake Ray - There was a vote that ......

John - These have been called ARPA funds in the past but essentially they are lost revenue that has come
to the Town.

Doug - Is that legal, | think there will be questions on that. We are using the funds and it might be illegal
to use those funds.

John - It has been approved based on my discussions with legal counsel. There is a final ruling coming
down in the next two (2) or three (3) weeks. We won't be spending any of the money until we receive
the final rules but based on what has been put out, the way we will be handling the funds will be spent

6



on this. We will be using it essentially for lost revenue, so essentially it is just revenue coming into the
Town, same as taxes or anything else.

Doug - | was just afraid that it would be challenged if you spend it and then the Town would have to pay
it back. Thatis up to the Town Attorney.

Mayor Cury - Health Insurance Renewal

John - This is our annual health insurance renewal for our employees as well as Council. This has to be
submitted by the 15™ of this month. We will have to have approved at this meeting so we continue to

have insurance for our employees. |1 am asking Council to approve the request so we can move forward
with the insurance part of our budget.

Doug - The employees deserve it, they put their heart into their work but | would ask the Council to take
themselves out of the health insurance. The Town is having such a hard problem; we are always
screaming we don’t have enough money in the budget. | don’t think it is prudent that we pay for the
Council’s health insurance and ask that the Council consider taking that out and only paying for the full-
time employees as it was meant to be.

Mayor Cury — Consideration of Solar Policy Proposal

John - We have had a couple of requests coming recently about people potential interested in solar
panels either on their business or their home. | have reached out to Blue Ridge Power and they are
working with GDS to help us with a policy. Right now if someone puts solar panels on their house we
have no policy that allows them to potentially sell back to the system if they have excessive amount of
electricity compared to what their building uses. | talked to them and anywhere between $10,000 and
$20,000 is kind of our best guess right now what that would cost to get a policy in place as well as look
at our rates and see what would be a fair value to put on that electricity could potentially come back
into the system. | think it is something we should look into and have something in place before
someone spends thousands of dollars on solar panels and finds out we are not going to pay the rate
they were told they would receive if they have excessive voltage on their system. | don’t have any
numbers yet but wanted to give Council an update on that, as soon as we get some more concreate
numbers | will bring back to Council.

Mayor Cury - | think it is the right idea about the solar panels but until the numbers are finalized we
really can’t really move on that yet,

Mayor Cury — Prom Request

John - The Richlands High School has requested permission to have their prom in the downtown area as
they have the last couple of years. 1 wanted Council to approve formally; it is a pretty big and important
event for the school and has an impact on our downtown.

7



Richard - The students really like the outside nature of having their prom. They really like the Greenway
space and the Section House; it is much cooler on them. This will be no expense to the Town. It is a joint
venture with Project Graduation who has agreed to reimburse the cost for blocking the streets or
anything electrical needs to be fixed at the Greenway or any of their needs for the prom.

Mayor Cury - Is there a date on the prom?
Richard — May 7
Mayor Cury - Discussion of Procedural Changes to Council Meetings

John - We have talked a couple times of ways to speed up and expedite our meetings. One of the items
that was brought up was to move the executive closed session to the front of the meeting. |would also
like for us to consider on how we do our public comments, having three (3) minutes and five (5)
minutes, and putting a time limit on Council reports. | think if we do three (3) minutes, if anybody
shows up that wants to speak they sign up and get three (3) minutes, make it simple. The rules and
regulations of what you are allowed to speak on at public comment and three (3) minute limit for
Council will hopefully expedite that time as well. If there is agenda item like the prom that someone
wants to discuss further or something important that we need additional time, | ask that be sent to me
before we send out agendas and we can add to the agenda for full discussion as we did the prom item. |
would like to get some direction on what Council would like to do.

John - First item - Move the executive closed session to the front of the meeting, the advantage | will let
Richard talk about,

Mayor Cury - We talked about it yesterday, to be upfront about it, the concern generally, we begin
regular session at 6:00pm are we speaking of 5:30pm

Richard — Between 5:30pm to 5:45pm depending on what we have, if we have a simple litigation or
simple contract negotiations that should not take any longer than 15 minutes. At 6:00pm when our
regular meeting starts we don’t have people waiting at 9:30pm or 10:00pm waiting for executive close
session to finish.

Mayor Cury - Since it is Council action, correct?
Richard — Yes
Mayor Cury - The only concern was time, we have regular council meeting at 6:00pm, if there is flex time

on how much would infringe on citizens who could be waiting if we go over. Sometimes we have quite
lengthy sessions.



Richard - When you are in executive session you get your point across and there is a consensus or a
topic has been discussed it tends to get you out of executive closed session faster.

John - One of my concerns if it does run over and you have people wanting to do public comment or see
what the other agenda items are.

Richard - | have checked with other localities and seem to think it works a lot better and you don’t have
citizens waiting at 11:30pm at night.

John - If you are interested we can try for three (3) months.

Darrell - | can’t be here no earlier than 6:00pm.

Mayor Cury - It is vital we have all Councilmembers.

Richard - It is just a suggestion.

Darrell - When | agreed to be on the Council | knew it was going to be tight.

John - We can just stick to 6:00pm and adjust the agenda, it would be interesting to see how other
places do it, we could try to mirror that, give it three (3) or four (4) months and try it. If we realize it

doesn’t work for us we can switch back. We could commit to three (3) or four {4) months and give it a
try.

Richard — Speaking to other Members of the Board seems like we get tied up in executive session talking
about a specific item and we never get to the bottom of it and of course we can’t vote on anything. In
talking to other Board Members or Councilmembers that have this in place with their executive session
at the beginning of the meeting it speeds up their meeting entirely because theyvknow the publicis
waiting for them to finish,

John - If there is a consensus we can give it a shot.

Mayor Cury - Can we cover the other points you want to consider.

John - Can we get a consensus and then move to the next item. We would start at 6:00pm and then the
executive session would be three (3) or four (4) down the line on the agenda.

Doug - So we would try for three (3} or four (4) months is that what you are suggesting?

Richard - If we have an executive session next month we try it at the beginning of the meeting after we
call the meeting to order then go into executive session.



Mayor Cury - For example recognizing anyone such as our young people tonight they would go first
obviously, we would approve the agenda and the minutes and then move into executive session.

Mayor Cury - Doug

Doug - | am neutral on it, | can see where it would speed up the process maybe, but if we have a long
executive session an hour and sometimes we do that would create a problem for some of them. | am
neutral | will go either way.

Mayor Cury - Richard

Richard - My suggestion was we would know the topic that we will discuss, like the ones tonight we
don’t expect to be very lengthy. If we know it is going to be lengthy we can move to the end of the
agenda.

Mayor Cury - 1 think we add this for consideration and add for April, May and June.

Darrell - | am fine with it.

Mayor Cury - So you are neutral too?

Darrell - Yes

Mayor Cury — Richard

Richard - | would like to try it to see if it works.

Mayor Cury — Mary Ann

Mary Ann - | think it is well worth trying.

Mayor Cury - There is a consensus in trying it, two (2) neutrals and (2) positives. We will try April, May,
June,

John - Next would be adjusting our public comments to three (3) minutes and putting a three (3) minute
limit on Council comments. We would have an embedded resolution that explains on how our public
comment works, it is not very clear we need to address anyway. | thought it was a perfect time to
simplify that and if you show up and sign up you get three (3) minutes. Council would also get three (3)
minutes.

Mayor Cury - Anyone wanting to speak to Council it is a three (3) minute limit period. They have to sign
up. | would suggest that we still offer in here if they want to speak.

10



Doug - We only had (2) speakers tonight. Most of the time we have maybe two (2) to four (4) speakers. |
don’t think we should limit it you are only going to save ten (10) minutes. If a citizen has something to
say and it takes longer than three (3) minutes he should be able to say his peace and have the time to
say it. | don’t think we are going to save time by limiting the citizens.

Darrell - | agree we are not going to save enough time to restrict somebody from speaking.

Richard - We adopted Robert’s Rule of Order for running the meetings, it would be interesting to see
how the rules are.

Mayor Cury - 1 can’t tell you what the rules are, they are complex we have went back and forth but they
were standard. | don’t know if it has a limit on there, it does have ten {10) minute limits. | would
suggest for the time being.

Mayor Cury - Mary Ann

Mary Ann - { would respect the Town Manager’'s recommendations, he manages the Town and we have
to defer to him for a lot of policies and procedures, however | can see the point that Doug and Darrell
made two (2) more minutes doesn’t add that much time. | am undecided at this point.

Mayor Cury - We have a Councilmember that wants to research Robert’s Rule of Order and keep it as it
is, | think we consider the consensus and leave it like it is and compare at the July meeting.

John - Would it change anybody’s mind if we leave at five (5) minutes or three (3) and you just sign in
when you come to meeting? Council can always change the time at the meeting. The Resolution that
we have is very hard to understand and how it describes the interpretation of the use of the five (5)
minutes. | want to make sure we don’t have an issue where people read it differently. | want to try to
clean it up.

Mayor Cury - This is what we have been doing. | know embedded resolutions can be difficult. We tell
citizens five (5) minutes are scheduled, three (3) minutes are unscheduled, and Brian volunteers and
helps us with the time. Sometimes people go way beyond their five (5) minutes. | don’t want to be rude
and stop them as the Mayor but | am respective of the time that we spend here and it can be quite
lengthy and cumbersome. 1 think the first thing we need to consider as well as dotting our “I” and
crossing our “T” and respect to the citizens and allowing them the five (5) minutes. It is a tradition of
what we have done. My suggestion is leave it as it is, and not try to reinterpret the resolution; | think we
can leave for at a different time.

Mary Ann - Are you saying five (5) minutes for scheduled and unscheduled comments.

11



Mayor Cury — Five (5) minutes for scheduled and three (3) minutes for unscheduled, what we have been
doing.

Mary Ann - You were thinking it would be easier if they were equal, right?

John - You would not have the scheduled you could show up and get the five (5) minutes. It makes the
process simple. You don’t have to call in just sign up.

Mayor Cury - That is a reasonable approach.
Mary Ann - | like that a lot better.

Mayor Cury - We will have a consensus, anyone coming to the Town Hall and they can’t come in late
gets five (5) minutes.

Doug — | think that is a great idea.

Darrell - I think it is a good idea.

Richard - Yes

Mary Ann - | think it is an excellent idea.

Mayor Cury - John, five (5) minutes and they don’t have to call in just sign in before the meeting.

John - Since it is not embedded resolution we will have a resolution drafted for approval for our next
meeting.

John - Council update time limits.
Mayor Cury - You want time limits on Council updates?

John - I think it is worth considering. | will leave up to you for further discussion. If you have something
that needs further discussion we can add as an agenda item. | just ask that you send before if we decide
to put time limits on Council reports.

Doug - | think that is a bad idea. You should not limit Council we represent the people. Sometimes we
might have some controversy, fifty people call in and you can’t get it all in, in three (3) minutes. | think
you are treading on unknown waters when you start limiting the time for Council. | am not sure it is
legal in the Charter.

Mayor Cury — Darrell

12



Darrell - | don’t think | have heard the Council speak over five (5) minutes. | don’t think it is a problem or
an issue,

Mayor Cury — Richard Brown
Richard — It is a non-issue for me.

Mary Ann - | think it is a good idea because like John said, if you have people called you out, you call
John ahead of time and get it on the agenda and you have as much time as you need. Basically
unlimited.

Mayor Cury - If you have listed on the agenda and you have 20 or 50 people you have a special place on
the agenda.

John - It would be an agenda item under No. X.
Doug - | don’t think you should ever limit Council.

John - it is up to the Mayor’s discretion, but you know you need to get my points over in a “x” number
of time you tend to speak the points get those address versus rambling when you have unlimited time.

Doug - I don’t remember going over five (5) minutes but | assure if | go over five {5) minutes | am not
rambling, | get straight to the point.

Mayor Cury - We have two (2) neutrals.

John - We can table until next month.

Mayor Cury - That would be good we would have full Council.

John - We can vote on both items. | don’t recall anything else to expedite our meetings.
Mayor Cury - We will move forward with our (2) new protocols beginning in April.

John - We will formally vote on in April. We won’t be changing a policy one is a resolution. If we have
close session next month we will go ahead and try that, but the other two (2) be adopted or approved at
the next meeting.

Doug - Which ones do you want to table until next month?

13



John - We need a resolution for public comments we will have to change that, and discuss the time
limits on Council.

Mary Ann - The next meeting for the citizens.

John - The same thing we are doing now until a new resolution is passed.
Mary Ann - | just want to make sure citizens understand that.

John - Will not change until Council adopts a new policy.

Darrell - John | want to thank you for trying to speed these meetings up. Councilmembers get tired
sitting here after a really long day, town employees that have worked all day and the citizens.

Mayor Cury - Blake Ray — IDA has asked that we allocate $15,000, is there a motion for that?

John - | would like for legal counsel to look into that to see how we need to handle. | want to make sure
the way they were set up as an organization that we allocate or allow them to manage the correct way.

Mayor Cury - | think that is a wise decision.
Mayor Cury - Would someone like to make a motion to renew our health insurance?
Darrell - { will make the motion, Richard seconded the motion.

Doug - | would ask as | have asked before that Council be taken out of the health insurance. | don’t know
of anyone on this Council that can’t afford their own insurance. We have citizens struggling on $1800
and trying to pay an $800 electric bill. | wish the Council would consider exempting the Council from the
health insurance before we vote.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- No, Darrell - Yes, Richard- Yes, and Mary Ann —
Yes Motion carries — 3/1 (Doug voted No)

Mayor Cury - There is a request to have the Richlands Prom in the Town of Richlands for May 7.

Mary Ann - | make a motion that we allow Richlands High School to have their Prom on the Town
properties on May 7, Darrell seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Darrell - Yes, Richard- Yes, and Mary Ann —
Yes Motion carries — 4/0

14



Mayor Cury — “Town Manager” — John O’Daniel

John —We received three (3) different requests from the Planning Commission, The first they have
requested a joint public hearing with the Council at next month’s meeting and the second is an
additional joint public hearing. The first public hearing is a tract of land to be rezoned; the attorney will
probably speak to that. The second one is a conditional use permit for a mobile home. We would need
to have a public hearing with both Boards before we move forward with those. There are some
questions that the attorney has on the request for rezoning as it is an overlay that is something we have
on our zoning map. | will defer to him for anything we need to add to that discussion to move forward.

Mike - There is a piece of property over at the old Magic Mart, | believe came from the Planning
Commission as an overlay of industrial as well as B2 that kind of frees up and less restrictions. Planning
Commission has discretion at that point to decide if it is industrial or B2 at that point and how they want

to proceed on that. There is an advertisement that they have to go thru, it is a recommendation from

the Planning Commission. We would have to have an ordinance that has to be approved and public
hearings.

John - At this point would need to be referred back to the Planning Commission for a recommendation
and back to Council and then go thru the public hearings and advertisement. Council would have the
opportunity for the first reading. If everything moves quickly we could still do next month. It will be
when Planning Commission will be able to make a recommendation.

Mayor Cury - We need a public hearing.

Mike - Yes, but we have to have recommendation from the Planning Commission.

Mayor Cury - Are you asking for us to schedule a joint public hearing?

John - Yes, or you want the Planning Commission to look into further if you want to allow that property
to be rezoned.

Mayor Cury - Is it B2 right now?

John - It is B2 right now and then overlaid, so essentially it is both. We have some properties that are
like that but we don’t have it explained how it really works, so we need to have in place so Council can
consider the overlay.

Mayor Cury - Who is asking Travis?

John - Yes

15



Mayor Cury — He has bought the property, and wants to do some things over there so | think we should
consider it. |am suggesting, Planning Commission do some work and they can have a joint public
hearing with us if that is the case. Once we have the joint public hearing they can make a
recommendation to the Council and Council can vote. Is Council willing to have a joint public hearing in
April?

John - You want Planning Commission to look into this further?

Mayor Cury - Any more questions? Council agreed

John - Next is the mobile home for a conditional use permit, we can have a public hearing on the same
day and allow the Planning Commission to recess and come back with a recommendation. The mobile
home is aged and it is being replaced. They already have a demolition permit. It is 105 Augusta Avenue.
Mayor Cury — We need public hearing, we will do both topics in April. Council agreed

John - The third item, we put a zoning map update out for bid, we only received (1), we had $30,000
budgeted for this study, it came in at $98,000. They are asking during the budget process allocate the
$30,000 or maybe a little bit more and put out for bid again and hopefully we get several more and be a

little bit more competitive. | don’t need an action tonight but we can discuss at budget workshop.

John — We looked at the Iron Street property with DEQ, we will have to schedule a meeting. Hopefully in
the next couple of months we can have a discussion. Blake and | will be discussing with them.

Mayor Cury — “Attorney Comments” — Mike Thompson

Mike —t don’t have anything at this time.

Mayor Cury — “Council Member Reports” — Richard Brown

Richard - Just wanted to express my appreciation to the Fire and Police Departments for a quick
response on an incident with a resident a couple days ago. The Forestry Department is looking into it.
Just wanted to let them know | appreciate their quick response.

Richard - I have had several complaints about the billing in January the amounts were excessive, it was
the delay in between the times they read the meters and when they received the bill. | waited until this

month to bring up because February bill was back to normal.

John - We had an issue but it has been addressed. We will continue to monitor if you get complaints we
will look into it further.

16



Richard — Zoning, more and more people are working from home now, | don’t know if we have ever
addressed the people who run businesses from their home. We have probably never enforced it but if
we are looking at zoning my request is to include that as well. It is not fair to the business owners who
are in the business district who are paying their licenses and fees and taxes and then someone else

running their business from their home that is exempt or excluded from those because it is not picked
up in the zoning.

John - 1 want to say we have something in place; | will get up with you to see if it needs to be more
restrictive or more defined.

Richard - | don’t think it is a huge problem now, but | think it will be more and more with broadband
improving.

Mayor Cury — “Council Member Reports” Darrell Addison

Darrell - | was in the meeting that Blake referred to about the side by sides with the Spearhead Trail, |
think it would bring a lot of business to downtown Richlands and help our restaurants which helps our
tax money, | think we really need to look at that and maybe consider the company that Shea told us
about with UVA to help us with that.

John - | reached out to them today and waiting to hear back from them.

Mayor Cury — “Council Member Reports”- Doug Ratliff

Doug - 1 would like to make a motion.

Mayor Cury — | don’t mean to interrupt you but the way it is written in our packet, it is non-voting items,
it presents a conundrum, | am not calling you down, it is the way it is written.

Doug - So what do you want me to do?

Mayor Cury - Wait until after all this and then make a motion.

Mayor Cury -~ “Council Member Reports” — Mary Ann Strong

Mary Ann - As Richard commented on the Police Department, on behalf of the Clinch Valley Medical
Center, | know the CEO Peter Mulkey reached out to Chief Gilbert and myself to thank them for heading
off what could have been a very volatile event in the emergency room recently. Dr.Mulkey wanted you

all to know his compliments to the Police Department, he has always said they are always there,

extremely prompt and how appreciative the Clinch Valley Medical is for our Police Department and our
EMS.

17



Mary Ann — Rocky Hill, he heads up a wonderful organization called “God’s Rock Stars”, he presented to
the Rec Commission, | will need to wait, and we will have to vote.

Mary Ann - Basketball is wrapping up tonight. The Richlands Road Race 5K in partnership with the
hospital and the Rec Department will be held June 4. They are talking about having the awards at the
Section House and maybe a pancake breakfast. The Adopt a Child Program is now accepting sponsors. It
is a wonderful program most Councilmembers sponsored last year. It is $180 a year and provides a
complete membership to a child that may not be fortunate enough to have membership to the Rec Park.
You can see Jessica Reynolds Lawrence if you are interested in sponsoring a child. You don’t have to
have a name she can assign one.

Mary Ann - | wanted to welcome the Railroad Depot on Front Street and thank Lori Stacey with the
Tazewell County Chamber for a great ribbon cutting. She had a lot of media there; it was nice to see
radio and TV to cover that event. The Lucky Duck a new business down toward Grants, | would like to
welcome them. The Bad Axery is getting closer to having a ribbon cutting scheduled.

Doug - I have had a lot of requests of why we are not on the Access Channel. | thought we paid $5000 to
get it on the Access Channel. | wish we could address that. A lot of people don’t do Facebook and You
Tube.

John - | will follow up and look into it.

Doug - Can you address why we paid $5000 to get it on the Access Channel.

John - | will have to look into it | don’t have an answer at this moment.

Richard - Access Channel has moved to a higher channel, | think 260/280 if you don’t have a box you
don’t get those channels.

Doug - | just think the citizens need to know what is going on in Town. Can you have an answer next
month?

John - I will look into it.
Mayor Cury - | will open the floor up for motions.
Doug - I will make a motion, it will cost the Town nothing it is free, Shea requested a comparison study

by Weldon-Cooper a free competent analysis with the Arm of the University of Virginia to study our
electric system to see how it can be run appropriately or make it a better system.

Mayor Cury - The motion is to contact Weldon-Cooper to seek their counsel about our electricity.

18



Doug — Do a study and make a recommendation of why we are much higher than AEP and make
suggestions.

Mayor Cury — Weldon-Cooper has been here before and they are very good at this, | think they can do
studies but recommendations is not necessary in their purvey.

John - I have already reached out to them, we can go from there if it is something they can do for us.
Darrell - 1 will second the motion.
Richard - Is it something the Town Manager is already doing?

Doug - If we have a motion John will have full authority to contact them and ask them to do a study and
a comparison to AEP and our electric system.

John - | am just hesitant they could come back and say it is $20,000 and we already voted.
Darrell - 1 am taking my second back for a few minutes, as long as you say “free”.

Doug - 1 will put on my motion as long as it is “free”. Free consultation for a study of AEP versus
Richlands electricity.

Darrell - | will second it.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion

say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Darrell - Yes, Richard- Yes, and Mary Ann —
Yes Motion carries —4/0

John - 1 will continue discussion and bring back to our next meeting for further consideration.

Mary Ann - Rocky Hill approached the Rec Commission and it is the recommendation of the Rec
Commiission that we allow “God'’s Rock Stars” to have their prom at the Recreation Department on April
30 from 5pm to 9pm. The reason the vote has to come from Council he is asking for the gym to be
closed for the prom the rest of the Rec Center will be open. Whenever we close a section of the park,
we want Council approval. Richard seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Darrell - Yes, Richard- Yes, and Mary Ann —
Yes Motion carries ~4/0

Mayor Cury -~ “Mayor’s Comments’

19



Mayor Cury - | received a note and | want to apologize to Charles Church I have not called this person;
there was a note in my packet. Mr. Church | will get with you. | also received several messages on
Facebook messenger; any citizen can contact me thru messenger. | am very reluctant | have had
numerous contacts about the electric utility bills. | don’t respond to those. Anyone listening you are
welcome to contact me any possible way but reluctant to contact you that way. If you call me or want
to contact me please send me your phone number and | will call you back. | have had people call me
about the utilities that they are high and some say their bills are arriving late. In the olden days | always
got my bill on the first of the month but | don’t know.

John - Anyone can call the Town Hall if it got lost or is running behind.
Mayor Cury —John, Is this the same company we have used for a while?
John —We have since | have been here, at least a couple of years.

Mayor Cury - | want to clarify to the public the staff here don’t actually send your bill; | don’t want any
implications they are behind.

Doug - Why was it outsourced? When we had four (4) people in the office we always sent from the
office and now we have eight {8) or nine (9).

Mayor Cury - | don’t know how to answer that | will refer to Heather.

Heather - It was just a general delay, there is a shortage in paper and mailing. We can only tell you
when we request them.

Doug — Why was it changed?
Heather - | assume it had something to do with cost.
Doug - What is the cost per month? Can you bring next month? What we are paying them a month.

John - The thing with the cards they tend to get lost especially if they get sent to another Town, the full
envelope seems to be more reliable. It may be a little more expensive.

Mayor Cury - We use to have small postcards and then we went to envelope. | like the envelope | feel
my bill is my business.

Mayor Cury - At the Section House we are intending on purchasing dusk to dawn lighting, for our guest
during the Honey Festival, we will have (4) different things at the Section House. They were very well
attended; | think some people are still afraid to get out because of Covid. We had several guest, one of

20



the readings was Author Dr. Jones which Dr. Willis had, they came that evening and requested that we
put in lighting and we considered it at our last meeting. We are doing that, we don’t need the money
from the Town. If you want to send some money our way you can. We have made the money from
selling cakes and pies. We have already contacted George on what to do. We have numerous activities
planned hopefully | can share at the next meeting. | am always thankful for our Town Crew and our
Police, everyone thank you for all your hard work every day. 1t means a lot.

Mayor Cury — Executive Closed Session — 2.2-3711(A) Personnel (Town Clerk) and 2.2-3711(A) Contract
Negoations regarding Water Plant Upgrades.

Darrell - | make the motion to go into Executive Closed Session, Mary Ann seconded the motion.

John -t will clarify it is the Waste Water Treatment Plant.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion

say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Darrell - Yes, Richard- Yes, Mary Ann —Yes
Motion carries — 4/0

Mayor Cury — Council is now back in regular session. | will entertain a motion to return to regular
session, when voting you are certifying that Council has discussed nothing except for 2.2-3711(A)
Personnel, (Town Clerk) and 2.2-3711(A) Waste Water Treatment Plant.

Mary Ann - | make a motion to come back into regular session, Darrell seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion

say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Darrell - Yes, Richard- Yes, Mary Ann —Yes
Motion carries —4/0

Richard — | make a motion to authorize the Town Manager, John O’Daniel to request funding thru the

Clean Water Finance Inc. an assistance program in regards to grants and loans for the Waste Water
Treatment Plant. Darrell seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion

say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Darrell - Yes, Richard- Yes, Mary Ann — Yes
Motion carries — 4/0

Mayor Cury — Next Council meeting is April 12 and Budget Workshop on March 19 at 8:00am
Doug - | make the motion to adjourn, Darrell seconded the motion.

Adjourned

21



Rodney D. Cury — Mayor

Connie Allen, Clerk

22



HThe Richlands Town Council held a “Budget Retreat” on March 19, 2022, in the Richlands Council
Chambers at 8:00 am with the following present:

Mayor: Rod D. Cury

Town Manager: John O’Daniel

Town Clerk: Connie Allen

Council Members: Mary Ann Strong, Doug Ratliff, Mike Street
Richard Brown, Darrell Addison, Jeff Hurst

Town Attorney: No Attorney

Richlands Town Staff Present

Mayor Cury opened the meeting.

Mayor Cury gave the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance
Departmental Annual Updates:

Police - lerry Gilbert

e Salary Increase — Not competitive with other Towns.
e $120,000 Increase in budget for Salaries — Wage Adjustment.
e Printing & Binding — Asking for $500 increase — Total Amount $1,500.

e Training Expense Increase — Requesting $22,000 from $17,000 - Costs $7,000 for each person to
be trained.

e Equipment - $59,000
e Travel —Increase to $1,500

Fire — Keith Reynolds

s Proposed Wage Increase.

e New Member — No certification $11.00 per hr.

e Fire Fighter 1 - $12.00 per hr.

e Fire Fighter 2 - $13.00 per hr.

e Emergency Medical Technician - Increase $0.50 per hr.
e Captains - $14.00 per hr.

e Assistant Chief - $16.00 per hr.

e Class Instructor 1-4 — Increase $0.25 per hr.

e Four new garage doors with electric operators — Approx. $50,000
e Pickup for Command Vehicle

e Equipment for Command Vehicle - $10,000

e Mobile Vehicle Repeater for Command Vehicle $4,000
e Two (2) fuli-time Firefighters — Mon-Friday ~ Day Shift
o New Fire-Rescue Building



s Replace two (2) entrance doors.
e 911 increase in calls (200 extra calls)

e Ask for Committee to plan and seek grants/loans thru the Rural Development on the Federal
Level.

e Discussed Model/Make and age of pumpers and trucks.

EMS — Matt Whited

Salary Increases- Increase budget $53,232.00.

Office Supplies — Current $500.00 increase to $1,500.
Phone/Internet/Comm. — Current $2,500 decrease to $1,500.

e Uniforms - Current $4,000 increase to $4,500.

e Vehicle Maintenance — Outside — Current $11,000 increase to $13,500.
Building Repairs — Current $1,500 increase to $5,000.

Medical Repairs — Current $17,000 increase to $18,000.

e EMS Grants — AMB Match — Increase $35,000.

Electric — Allen Compton

e Wage increase request.

Hire additional person, only have (4) four people.
Uniform cost increased.

* Increase in fuel/equipment/fiber.

Truck seventeen (17) years old, if ordered new today delivery would be 2025, cost between
$225,000 and $250,000.

e Generator back-up for Water Treatment Plant, $135,000 to repair transfer switch.

Water — Brad Beavers

e Treatment Chemicals 45% increase- Increase budget from $90,000 to $130,000.
e Testing Chemicals 25% increase - Increase budget from $6000 to $7500.

e Need an Operator when Jonah Project hits

¢ Request 5% increase in salary.

e New work truck.

¢ The plantis 30 years old.

* Fluoride getting close to being inspected.

Jimmy Keene— Wastewater

e Request increase in salaries.

e It takes two (2) years for employees to get certified.
e Increase in electric rates.

* Request $5000 in Capital.



e Tandem Truck/Tractor — five (5) years.
e Need generator.

Bill Shelton — Wastewater

* Request salary increase.

Request additional person.

Need small increase in equipment budget.
Need tool truck — Transfer old one to Street Department.

George West — Street and Sanitation
Sanitation:

* Request salary increase.

Increase fuel budget.
Increase Capital — Need new vehicle Grappel Truck around $160,000.

Street:

Increase Capital — Dump Truck — approximately $148,600
Future: Backhoe and Street Sweeper

Jessica Reynolds Lawrence — Recreation Department

s Request salary increase.

e Request Rec. Director be put back in the budget, only have {1) full-time and (2) part-time
employees.

o Supplies have increased.

e Williams Park Maintenance.

Ashley Harris ~ Economic Development

¢ Request that Council transfer Town Events $10,000 from Council to Economic Development
budget.

Heather Peery — Finance and Administration

e Increase in wages due to Manager’s position short $25,000/$30,000.
e Decrease health insurance $5000.

¢ Dues & Membership - Increase slightly.

¢ Fees increased on bills change budget from $4000 to $8000.

e Increase office supplies.

e Increase equipment maintenance.



Financial Overview: John O’Daniel and Heather Perry reviewed handout with the Council.

e Suggest checking salaries of different counties.

o Discussed Employee Benefits, VRS Retirement and Insurance.

e COLA -2% Cost of Living discussed.

e Reviewed Six month Budget to Actual (7/2021-12/2021).

¢ Reviewed Budget Schedule.

e Audit — Consensus from Council.

e Suggested to put the Zoning back out for bid, maybe find different way to advertise.

e Solar Study - $11,000 to put a policy in place.

e Grant for Recreation — VA Main Street $7000, match of $3500.

e Grant for Branding the Town — 2/1 Match.

e Skewes Foundation Grant — Jessica Reynolds Lawrence submitted for Tennis Court.

* T Mobile Grant

e Code Enforcement - Don’t have in budget but would like to add for $30,000.

e Real Estate Tax increase 1% - Mayor suggested being cautious.

e Suggested in an increase in Cigarette tax, give a percent to Rec Park.

¢ Capital needs for all departments. Dump Truck/ Command Police Truck.

e Broadband —Mike handed out information.

e ARPA Funds — Start setting some of the funds.

e Utilities Tax Rate — Electric/Water/Sewage - Work with GDS to see what we can do to ease the
electric rates.

¢ Rate Schedules & Riders — Need to update in order to cover our cost.

* Flooding - Planning Grant for flood issues — Virginia Department of Emergency Management will
come to talk to Council as a whole.

Budget Retreat Adjourned



Town of Richlands

PAID CHECKS REPORT
03.08.22 (RAN AFTER COUNCIL PKS WENT OUT)

Check# Paid To Description Amount
11505 |APPALACHIAN POWER ST/LINES/WWTP/FIRE/RESCUE/LINES $1,566.25
11506 | CLERK, CIRCUIT COURT OF TAZEWELL COUNTY CLERK, CCTC-LIEN-REDACTED $2.00
11507 |CLERK, CIRCUIT COURT OF TAZEWELL COUNTY CLERK, CCTC-LIEN-REDACTED $2.00
11508 [JOHN WILLIS REISSUED-REFUND-ZONING ADVERT-DENIED-DID NOT ADV $150.00
11509 [LEAF LEAF-PD-COPIER LEASE, INS PO 305176 $111.04
11510 |PEDIATRIC EMGERGENCY STANDARDS, INC. RESCUE VIRTUAL INST COURSE, IND INSTRUCTOR PO RS3330 $599.00
11511 [REFUSE TO BE A VICTIM PD-LT PAUL LITTLE-03.14.22 IDW -PULASKI TRAIN DEPQOT PO 30517 $125.00
11512 |TRAVIS BENDER T BENDER-LUNCH-BRISTOL ACADEMY $15.00
11513 | TRI-CITY BUSINESS MACHINES CO PD-B/W, COLOR COPIES PO 305175 $38.38
11514 |VERIZON VERIZON-PD/FIRE/TN HALL/RESCUE/DTF $588.43

Total Checks:

$3,197.10







Town of Richlands

PAID CHECKS REPORT

3/9/2022 to 4/8/2022
Check## Paid To Description Check Date Amount

11515 |ULTRA PETROLEUM ALL DEPTS-FUEL FEB ‘22 (HAD TO REISSUE CHECK) 3/9/2022 $22,758,80
11516 | USABLUEBOOK WTP-ABOVE GRADE SAMPLING STATION PO WTP0Q27 3/9/2022 $718.90
11517 )| APPALACHIAN RESTAURANTS LLC CORDLE-REFUND OVER PMT ON BUS LIC 3/11/2022 $30.00
11518 | APPALACHIAN RESTAURANTS LLC HACKWORTH-REFUND-OVER PMT ON BUS LIC 3/11/2022 $1,273.45
11519|BRADLEY BEAVERS WTP-TIMING BELT FOR FILTER RATE OF FLOW CONTROLLERS PO 3/11/2022 $22.34
11520 |CARTER MACHINERY COMPANY, INC. CARTER-ST LOADER-2 BATTERIES PO 5714551 3/11/2022 $523.96
11521} CHRISTOPHER MICALE, TRUSTEE GARNISHMENT 3/11/2022 $225.67
11522 |CLERK, CIRCUIT COURT OF TAZEWELL COUNTY jCLERK, CCTC-LIEN 3/11/2022 $2.00
11523 CLINCH VALLEY MEDICAL CENTER CVYMC-FIN-FIELDS, KIMBERLY, SANT-WIMMER, ZACHARY-PRE-EM 3/11/2022 $567.00
11524 | COLE ELECTRIC, INC, COLE ELECT-WWTP-REPAIRS TO BELT PRESS RAW PUMP PO 8173 3/11/2022 $1,392.00
11525 |CUES, INC, CUES-LINES/ST-CUES PUSH CAMERA SYSTEM PO L83545 3/11/2022 $14,300.00
11526 |FIRST COMMUNITY BANK FIRE DEPT-FIRE TRUCK ANNUAL PMT 3/11/2022 $79,710.78
11527 |KIDD TIRE AUTO PARTS KIDD TIRE-SANT #648-TIRE-MOUNT-NO BALANCE ON TRUCK PO 3/11/2022 $483.66
11528 1PACE ANALYTICAL SERVICES, LLC WTP/WWTP-SAMPLES 3/11/2022 $672.60
11528 |RICHLANDS FARM BUREAU ST-SPRAY NOZZLE, HANDRAILS 3/11/2022 $34.27
11530|SPECTRUM BUSINESS REC-PHONE/INERNET/TV SVC-WWTP-INDIAN CREEK ROAD-TELE 3/11/2022 $202.85
11531 | SPEEDY LUBE, INC. SPEEDY LUBE-DTF-FULL SVC Oil. CHANGE/LUBE, COOLANT 3/11/2022 $64.67
11532 TREASURER OF VA - DEPT OF PROFESSIONAL Al TREAS-DPOR-REYNOLDS, BRYAN WWTP CLASS 3 APPLICATION P 3/11/2022 $200.00
11533 | TREASURER TAZEWELL COUNTY PARTIAL REFUND ARPA SLFRF UTILITIY FUNDS 3/11/2022 $32,695,57
11534 [TREASURER, DIVISION OF CONSOLIDATED LABY TREAS OF VA-WTP-TOTAL COLIFORM TEST KIT PO WTP0040 3/11/2022 $303.75
11535 VERIZON BUSINESS VERIZON BUSINESS-PD-LONG DISTANCE 3/11/2022 $3.43
11536 POSTMASTER POSTMASTER-MAR 22 DELINQ BILLS/ R/E BUDGET 3/17/2022 $332.46
11537 |AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC. FIN OFFICE-POSTAGE TAPE, OFF SUPPLIES,FIRE, EL DEPT 3/18/2022 $439.48
11538 CARROT-TOP INDUSTRIES, INC, CARROT-TOP-TOWN HALL-2 VA-FLAGS 4X6 PO FIN6205 3/18/2022 $191.45
11539 CHRISTOPHER MICALE, TRUSTEE GARNISHMENT 3/18/2022 $225.67
11540 | CLERK, CIRCUIT COURT OF TAZEWELL COUNTY |CLERK, CCTC-REL LIEN 3/18/2022 $1.00
11541 (D R WILLLAMSON RESTAURANT Utility Refund for 1505436.00 98 3/18/2022 $13.70
11542 | EVIDENT CRIME SCENE PRODUCTS EVIDENT-HIDTA-DTF-EVIDENCE BAGS PO 305155 3/18/2022 $518.24
11543 |FEDEX FEDEX-FIRE-SAFETY LAB PLUS PO FIN6199 3/18/2022 $15.06
11544 |FENIEX INDUSTRIES, INC. FENIEX-PD UNITS #44/H#50-EQUIPMENT FOR NEW VEHICLES PO 3 3/18/2022 $4,703,59
11545 1FIRST COMMUNITY BANK KIDS DAY, RESCUE/PD/WTP/TN HALL-OFFICE, CLEANING SUPPLIE 3/18/2022 $2,385.10
11546{FULLER, TINA DENISE Utility Refund for 605652.00 86 3/18/2022 $64.81
11547 GILLESPIE, HART, ALTIZER & WHITESELL, P.C. |GILLESPIE HART-ATTY FEES 3/18/2022 $6,860.00
11548 HARRIS HARRIS-FIN OFFICE-LASER W-2 4 UP FORMS AND ENVELOPES-Q] 3/18/2022 $215.90
11549 | LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS LEXISNEXIS-DTF-FEB 2022 CONTRACT FEE, PHONE SERACH PO 30 3/18/2022 $35.50
11550 LUSK DISPOSAL SERVICE, INC. LUSK-WWTP/CVMC-FEB 2022 HAUL SVC 3/18/2022 $2,732.66
11551 |NROUTE LLC NROUTE-PD-#44/4#50-PUSH BUMPER/PUSH BUMPER LIGHT/WIN| 3/18/2022 $5,013.99
11552 | PLUCHE, BENJAMIN ALFRED Utility Refund for 10010644.00 95 3/18/2022 $52.17
11553 {PROFESSIONAL MAIL SERVICES, INC. PMSI-MAR 22 POSTAGE RESIDENTIAL BILLS 3/18/2022 $1,184.00
11554 | PROFESSIONAL MAIL SERVICES, INC. PMSI-MAR 22 RES UT BILLS 3/18/2022 $332,73
11555 | PROFESSIONAL MAIL SERVICES, INC. PMSI-MAR 22 COMM UT BILLS 3/18/2022 $73.11
11556 | PROFESSIONAL MAIL SERVICES, INC. PMSI-POSTAGE-MAR 22 COMM UT BILLS 3/18/2022 $201.55
11557 {RICHARD BROWN R BROWN-RHS BB 21-22 SEASON {PD BY RHS} 3/18/2022 $720.00
11558 RICOH USA INC. RICOH-PD-5Q ROOM/DISPATCH COPJER-BW & COLOR COPIES P(] 3/18/2022 $55.25
11559 |SEGRA SEGRA-ALL DEPTS PHONE SERVICE 3/18/2022 $2,262.67
11560 [SPECTRUM BUSINESS SPECTRUM-ACCESS CHANNEL PO 305180 3/18/2022 $15.75
11561 |TOWN OF RICHLANDS P/R DEDUCTION-UTILTIES 3/18/2022 $596.45
11562 | TRUCKPRO, LLC TRUCKPRO-SANT #648-2 SPRNG BRK PO 14555 3/18/2022 $134.98
11563 |VERIZON VERZION-2026-SCHOOL TANK VAULT 3/18/2022 $50.21
11564 |[VERIZON WIRELESS VERIZON WIRELESS-DTF/PD/RESCUE/FIN OFF/W/S/E CELL PHON| 3/18/2022 $1,425.17
11565 {VIRGINIA RISK SHARING ASSOCIATION VRSA-4TH QTR PMT FOR RENEWAL 2021-2022 3/18/2022 $53,621.50
11566 |WYTHEVILLE OFFICE SUPPLY, INC. WYTHEVILLE OFFICE-DTF-HIDTA-OFFICE SUPPLIES PO 305147 3/18/2022 $1,188.48
11567 |REDACTED DTF-POSTAGE PO 305184 3/22/2022 $150.00
11568 | APPLIED INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGIES-DIXIE  |APPLIED-ST/SAN/EL/LINES-5 CS DEF FLUID PO 14476 3/25/2022 $126.60
11569 | CARTER MACHINERY COMPANY, INC. CARTER MACHINERY-SANT #648-LUBE FILTER, FILTER AS PO 5T14 3/25/2022 $40.21
11570[CHARLIE WARD CHARLIE WARD-ST BOOT ALLOWANCE PO 14608 3/25/2022 $106.00
11571 |EARL COLE INC. DBA-THE VOICE CLERK/FIRE-RESCUE JOB/BUDGET WORKSHOP, SP CALLED MTG 3/25/2022 $312,00
11572 |HEATHER PERRY H PERRY-BUDGET RETREAT-DONUTS FOR MEETING 3/25/2022 $14.86
11573 [JOHN O'DANIEL BUDGET RETREAT-SOFT DRINKS FOR MEETING 3/25/2022 $27.64
11574 | MICHAEL SIZEMORE WTP-DISTILLED WATER PO WTP0045 3/25/2022 $4,08
11575 [NATIONAL BANK NATIONAL BANK-WTP/WWTP- LOC INT PMT-APRIL 1, 2022 3/25/2022 $3,260,91
11576 | PURCHASE POWER PURCHASE POWER-POSTAGE-FIN/W/S/E 3/25/2022 $2,020.59
11577 |RICOH USA INC. RICOH-PD-INVESTIGATIONS-LEASE PO 305190 3/25/2022 $183.06
11578 | SPECTRUM BUSINESS WWTP/TELEMETRY, REC-TV/VOICE/INTERNET 3/25/2022 $222,88
11579 STATE ELECTRIC SUPPLY COMPANY ST LIGHTS-HV/LV SUPPLIES 3/25/2022 $3,090.48
11580 |VERIZON 2189-TN HALL/FIRE/RESCUE FAX, DTF SEC LINES/WTP TELE 3/25/2022 $285,88
11581 |APPALACHIAN POWER AEP-WWTP/FIRE-RESCUE/ST/LINES 4/1/2022 $1,740.28
11582 |CHRISTOPHER MICALE, TRUSTEE GARNISHMENT 4/1/2022 $225.67
11583 {EARL COLE INC, DBA-THE VOICE THE VOICE-BLACKSTONE DATA-ZONING AD PO CA1062 4/1/2022 $180,00
11584 | MOBILE COMMUNICIATIONS AMERICA MOBILE COMM-LLEB-PD-REPEATER AT RHS PRESS BOX PO PS30 4/1/2022 $3,445,00
11585 [ PITNEY BOWES INC. PITNEY BOWES-FIN OFFICE-MAIL SYSTEM LEASE 01.30.22-04.29, 4/1/2022 $486.21
11586 | PROFESSIONAL MAIL SERVICES, INC. PMSI-APR 22-COMM BILLS POSTAGE 4/1/2022 $197.01
11587 | PROFESSIONAL MAIL. SERVICES, INC. PMSI-APR'22 COMMERCIAL BILLING 4/1/2022 $77.69
11588 | QUADMED, INC, . QUADMED-RESCUE-MEDICAL SUPPLIES PO R3118 4/1/2022 $494.64
11589 | TAZEWELL CO PUBLIC SERVICE AUTHORITY TCPSA-WWTP-LIFT STATION 4/1/2022 $39.74
11590 | TRAVIS BENDER T BENDER-RP-ROANOKE LUNCH, BRISTOL LUNCH-TRAINING 4/1/2022 $30,00
11591 | TREASURER TAZEWELL COUNTY TREAS,TAZ CO-FEB 2022 CONSUMER UTILITY TAX A/4/2022 $124.01

Total Checks: $258,734.18

GRAND TOTAL

$258,734.18







Town of Richlands

PAID CHECKS REPORT

4/12/2022
Check#f  {Paid To Description Amount
11592 |ADVANCE AUTO PARTS ADVANCE-ALL DEPTS-BATTERIES, OlL, PARTS, ETC. $696.74
11593 ALTEC INDUSTRIES, INC. ALTEC-EL-#970-2-RYD VALVE, LABOR PO EL 93618 $1,198.33
11594 | AMAZON WEB SERVICES, INC, AMAZON WEB SERVICES-IT-CLOUD SVC-MARCH 2022 $647.68
11595{AMERICAN CARPET CARE, INC, JAN-MAR '22 BRUSH CUTTING. TRASH PICKUP-JANITORIAL SVC $25,870.00
11596 |ANCHORAGE PHOTO & VIDEO RADIO SHACK EL-5 FUEL FILTERS/2 AIR FILTERS/1 6PK OIL MIX/3-16" LOOP CHAINS $969,87
11597 |APPALACHIAN AGENCY FOR SENIOR CITIZENS AASC-APRIL 2022-PUBLIC TRANSIT $600.00
11598 |APPALACHIAN AGGREGATES, LLC ST/LINES-STONE $3,272.61
11599 | APPLIED INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGIES-DIXIE SHOP-OIL DRY PADS-EL-5 CS WATER $95.38
11600| ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES ALL DEPTS-UNIFORMS/RUGS/DUST MOPS ' $1,518.63
11601 | ATLANTIC MACHINERY, INC. LINES #809-20- HOSE KANAFLEX 6 IN ID PO L83554 $1,297.34
11602 |BLUE RIDGE POWER AGENCY BRPA-JAN/FEB 2022-GDS/ENG/LEGAL/CONSULTING/BRPA DUES {50%} $14,974.41
11603 |BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC BOUNDTREE-RESCUE-MEDICAL SUPPLIES PO RS3270 $518.98
11604 |BROADWELL, GILLESPIE & NIMMO P.C. BROADWELL GILLESPIE-PD-COURT COSTS-REDACTED PO 305193 $120,00
11605{BUSKILL SALES CO., INC. BUSKILL SALES-LINES BACKHOE-2 TIRES/VALVES/MOUNTED ON MACHINE/TIH $1,105.90
11606{C.W. WILLIAMS FIRE EQUIPMENT C. W. WILLIAMS-FIRE-WASH DETERGENT PO F2059 $176.95
11607 {CARTER MACHINERY COMPANY, INC, CARTER MACHINERY-WWTP-ENDLOADER-STARTER, CORE PO 14561 $1,229.69
11608{CLEARWATER, INC. CLEARWATER-LINES-SSES-CARRIER FOR LOW PROFILE A/V SENSOR, WWTP-RH $2,217.56
11609|CMC SUPPLY, INC. CMC-LINES-METERS AND RELATED MATERIALS $5,035.36
11610|COCA-COLA BOTTLING CO, INC. COCA-COLA-REC-CONCESSION PO RP2820 $328,07
11611{COLE ELECTRIC, INC. WWTP-DAVIS EMU INSERT PUMP-REPAIRS PO 81729 $2,850.00
11612 |COOKE SHORTT & KEENE COOKE SHORTT & KEENE-PD-REDACTED PO 305200 $120.00
11613 |CRAB ORCHARD VETERINARY SVCS, INC. CRAB ORCHARD VET-PD-SHERMAN CT MOM/PUPPY HEARTWORM, HOSP ISO $236.00
11614 CREATIVETIME SOLUTIONS TIME & ATTENDANCE WEB HOSTING-ALL EMPLOYEES $150.00
11615|DDP LLC DDP-FIN OFFICE-GEN FUND CHECK 5,000 PO FIN6204 $1,475.02
11616 DOMINION PEST CONTROL, INC, PD/RESCUE/REC PARK/WTP-MARCH PEST CONTROL PO 305202 $225.00
11617 ELKINS GARAGE PD-TOWED 2002 FORD RANGER FROM JEWELL RIDGE TO RICHLANDS PO 3052 $150.00
11618|EVIDENT CRIME SCENE PRODUCTS EVIDENT-HIDTA-DTF-EVIDENCE BAGS PO 305188 $206,00
11619(F.5.1. MID STATE DIV, INC, FSI MID STATE-PD-HVAC AIR FILTERS PO 305192 $85.00
11620 FIRST VEHICLE SERVICES PD-#44/50-DELL DOCK & POWER SUPPLY, SWING ARM,12" POLE BOTTOM PO, $2,388.40
11621 |GAYNELLE HARMAN REFUND-OVER PMT-AMBULANCE BILL-RALPH HARMAN $78.00
11622 {{NDUSTRIAL CHEM, LABS & SERVICES INC, IND CHEM LABS-WWTP-LIFT ST DEGREASER PO 81731 $147.36
11623 |JERRY'S AUTO SERVICE JERRY'S AUTO-RESCUE #552-OIL/FUEL/AIR FILTERS, DIESEL OIL, FR/REAR EXT & $940.90
11624 |KENDALL ELECTRIC INC. £1-16 ITRON CL200 REPLACEMENT ELECTRIC METERS PO UT0008 $5,559.84
11625 |KIDD TIRE AUTO PARTS PD-Olt. CHANGE, WTP-RANGER-4 TIRES/M&B/1 LAWN TUBE-MOUNT $995.28
11626 | KUSTOM SIGNALS, INC. KUSTOM SIGNALS-PD-IN CAR CAMERA EQUIP PO 305114 $9,850,00
11627|LOWE'S LOWE'S-ALL DEPTS-SUPPLIES & MATERIALS $6,585.92
11628LUSK DISPOSAL SERVICE, INC, LUSK-CVMC-MARCH 2022 HAUL SVC $1,266.68
11629{MARKE. ISON IT-APRIL 2022 MONTHLY SUPPORT, TRAVEL FEE PO 305209 $1,750.00
11630{MCCLURE CONCRETE PRODUCTS, INC. ST- LARAMIE ROAD-2 YDS 3000 PSI CONCRETE, FUEL SURCHARGE $370.00
11631} MINEQUEST, INC, MINEQUEST-ST/LINES/SANT-HOSE ASSY $1,202,77
11632 |MOBILE COMMUNICATIONS AMERICA, INC. MOBILE COMMUNICATIONS-FIRE #526-REPEATER EXT WARRANTY 1 YR PO F2] $2,920.00
11633 |MORTON SALT, INC, MORTON SALT-ST 267,760 LB ROAD SALT PO ST14537 $14,908.88
11634} MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO. MSC IND SUPPLY-LINES/SSES-BATTERIES FOR FIELD TESTING, ST SHOP-RECIP § $337.49
11635|MSE COMPANIES MSE COMPANIES-SANT-BEAR BARS & HARDWARE PO 14601 $899,18
11636 | NORFOLK SOUTHERN CORPORATION NS CORP-CROSSING PROT DEVICES MAINT M00558 $5,360.00
11637{OUTDOOR COUNTRY QUTDOOR COUNTRY-WTP-NEW STIHL FS70R TRIMMER, TRIMMER LINE, ULTR $369.20
11638 |PACE ANALYTICAL SERVICES, LLC PACE-WWTP-MONTHLY SAMPLES PO 81726 $880.10
11639 [PAYNE INDUSTRIAL AND FARM EQ., INC. PAYNE IND-ST-(6) EQUIPMENT KEYS PO 14565 $32.58
11640|PRIORITY MEDICAL CLAIMS, INC. PMC-MARCH 2022 RESCUE COLLECTIONS $3,072.96
11641|QUADMED, INC. QUADMED-RESCUE-MEDICAL SUPPLIES PO RS3324 $1,326,00
11642 | RAMEY TAZEWELL RAMEY TAZEWELL-PD #57 ENG MISSING-EMISSION/FUEL SVC PO 305214 $283.44
11643 {RAVEN SUPER MARKET RAVEN SUPER MKT-WWTP/REC-SUPPLIES $171.93
11644 |RICHLANDS FARM BUREAU WWTP-LIME/BLK PLASTIC/BLEACH, ALL DEPTS-SUPPLIES $1,102.72
11645|SILVER SPUR SUPPLY, INC. REC-LAKE PARK PLAYGOUND-LUMBER FOR REPAIRS TO PLAYGROUND EQUIP $93,36
11646 |SPEEDY LUBE, INC. SPEEDY LUBE-DTF-REDACTED COMPLETE BREAK SVC/FULL SVC SYN/VA STATE $900.02
11647 |SPRING HILL LAWN & GARDEN EQUIPMENT SPRING HILL-WWTP-CHARGER FOR PORT GENERATOR PO 81717 $68.95
11648 |STATE ELECTRIC SUPPLY COMPANY STATE ELECTRIC-EL-4 50W 7100 LUMED 4K D-D PO EL700476 $600.84
11649 [SUB-ACQUATICS, INC FIRE-EMERG REPAIR TO AIR COMP STATION #1 PO F2057 $750.99
11650 {SWVRIA ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT SWVRJA-PD-INMATE BILLING JAN/FEB 2022 PO 305185 $351.00
11651 |TEEN VENTURE TEEN VENTURE-MARCH 2022 DONATIONS COLLECTED $124.01
11652|TESCO TESCO-EL-METER DISCONNECT SLEEVES PO UT0012 $123.92
11653 |THC ENTERPRISES INC. THC ENT-SANT #624-DIRECT MOUNTED PUMP $1,170.28
11654 | THOMPSON & LITTON, INC. WWTP/WTP/LINES PROJECTS OCT, FEB, MARCH $22,670.03
11655|TRUCKPRO, LLC TRUCKPRO-SANT #63-KNOB, #625-SENSOR PR PO 14560 $229.51
11656 |ULTRA PETROLEUM ALL DEPTS-FUEL $25,462.67
11657} USABLUEBOOK USABLUEBOOK-WTP-CHEMICALS FOR TREATMENT $1,835.91
11658|USALCO USALCO-WTP-DELPAC 2020 PO WTP00A6 $9,081.60
11659 | VIRGINIA UTILITY PROTECTION SERVICE, INC. VUPS-MISS UTLITY-MARCH 2022-33 TRANSACTIONS $34,65
11660 W-L CONSTRUCTION & PAVING, INC. W-L CONSTRUCTION-ST-ASPHALT 3.99 TONS $372.83
11661 |WYTHEVILLE OFFICE SUPPLY, INC. PD/DTE/OFFICE SUPPLIES $514,66

Total Checks:

$194,555.39

AMP (FEB '22)

$402,793.56
ANTHEM BC/BS (FEB'22) $100,562.00
VRS JAN'22) $67,856.15
GRAND TOTAL $765,767.10







RESOLUTION NO.: 0-2022-04-01

Amendment to Replace an Embedded Resolution
Town of Richlands Public Comment Rules and Procedures

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the Town of Richlands, Virginia, that it hereby adopts the following public
comment rules and procedures, pursuant to the Virginia Code of Ordinances;

Public Comment Rules and Procedures

The Town Council values the opinions of its citizens and welcomes public comment on items of Town interest at our
monthly meetings.

The Town Council wishes to facilitate the orderly reception and dissemination of information, and the Town Council
determines that this can best be accomplished in an environment where the rules of conduct are clearly established.

Individuals that wish to speak at a monthly Town Council Meeting must sign up prior to the public comment period.
Speakers are limited to a maximum of five (5) minutes per person unless

1). Prior arrangements have been made with the Mayor, or

2). The Town Council, due to adjustments to the agenda, increases or reduces the time limit.

Public Comment Rules

The Town Council values the opinions of its citizens and welcomes public comment on items of Town interest at our
monthly meetings.

The Town Council wishes to facilitate the orderly reception and dissemination of information and the Town Council
determines that this can best be accomplished in an environment where the rules of conduct are clearly established.

1. Each speaker shall be limited to a maximum comment period of three five (5) minutes.

2. No speaker shall be permitted to cede his or her five (5) minute allotment to another speaker.

3. Each speaker shall speak from the podium or microphone and shall state his or her name and address for the
record. ‘

4. The timekeeper will begin the speaker’s time when the speaker is finished stating their name and address. The
timekeeper will raise his or her hand notifying the mayor and speaker that only thirty seconds remain. The same
signal will be given when the speaker has reached the end of their allotted time. If a timekeeper is not present
the Mayor will dictate how time will be kept and enforced.

Documents
Any speaker who intends to produce a report, diagram, map, photograph, compilation of data, or other document to the
Town Council at a meeting shall also provide the Town Clerk or their designee with ten (10) hard copies, and, if possible,

one (1) electronic copy, of all documents prior to the Town Council meeting so that the documents may be maintained
as part of the record of the meeting.

Decorum



a) Comments by citizens are limited to statements by persons recognized to speak by the Mayor; speakers may not
engage the Town Council members or Town employees in a question-and-answer exchange unless authorized by the
Mayor.

b) The Town Council requests civility in public discourse and requires that speakers refrain from language which would
incite an immediate breach of the peace, and further requires that speakers refrain from undue repetition, extended
discussion of irrelevancies, use of obscenities, and/or personal attacks.

¢) Any person who violates these rules can be declared out of order by the Mayor, and a person who persists in violating
these rules can be removed from the meeting.

(Ord. of 04-12-2022)
First Reading:

Second Reading:

VOTE: Addison
Hurst
Ratliff
Street
Mavyor
Clerk

Effective Date (30 days from passage, unless passed as emergency):



